
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Wednesday 15 January 2020 at 7.30 pm

Council Chamber - Civic Centre

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions  

2. Declarations of Interest  

Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any matters on 
the agenda.

3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 4)

4. Matters Arising  

5. Written Questions  

6. Procedure for Consideration of Planning Applications  

At the discretion of the Chair, the following procedure will apply to 
the consideration of planning items:-

* Planning Officer presents reports.

* Comments invited from members of the public who have 
registered with the Governance Support Section (01279 
446057) at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting, as 
follows:

- 3 (maximum) against an application.
- 3 (maximum) for an application.
- each speaker is limited to 3 minutes (maximum).

* Comments invited from the applicant/agent for a maximum 
of 3 minutes (who has also given at least 24 hours notice to 
the Governance Support Section) of their wish to speak.

* Councillors’ questions and clarifications.

* Officers respond to the technical planning questions raised 
as directed by the Chair.

* Councillors debate and make a decision.

7. HW/HSE/19/00401 - 215 Malkin Drive  (Pages 5 - 13)

8. HW/HSE/19/00452 - 77 The Chantry  (Pages 14 - 23)

Public Document Pack



9. References from Other Committees  

Any references received after the publication of this agenda will be 
circulated separately.

10. Matters of Urgent Business  

Such other business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be 
received as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances to be 
specified in the minutes.



MINUTES OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
HELD ON

17 December 2019 7.30  - 8.05 pm

PRESENT

Committee Members
Councillor Phil Waite (Chair)
Councillor Jean Clark
Councillor Jodi Dunne (substitute for Councillor Maggie Hulcoop)
Councillor Tony Edwards (substitute for Councillor Bob Davis)
Councillor Michael Garnett
Councillor Sue Livings

Officers
Amanda Julian, Legal Service Manager
Mark Philpott, Development Manager
Adam Rees, Governance Support Officer
Tanusha Waters, Planning and Building Control Manager

51. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bob Davis, Michael 
Hardware, Maggie Hulcoop, Clive Souter and Nancy Watson. Councillors 
Jodi Dunne and Tony Edwards attended as substitutes for Councillors 
Maggie Hulcoop and Bob Davis respectively.

52. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Jodi Dunne declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 9 
as a Bush Fair Ward Councillor.

Councillor Mike Garnett declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 
8 as an Essex County Councillor.

53. MINUTES 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 
2019 are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

54. MATTERS ARISING 

None.

55. WRITTEN QUESTIONS 

None.

3

Agenda Item 3



56. PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

RESOLVED that the procedure for the conduct of the meeting is 
noted.

57. HW/HSE/19/00363 - 34 SHELDON CLOSE 

The Committee considered a report on application HW/HSE/19/00363 
which proposed two-storey extension at the rear of 34 Sheldon Close.

Presentations were heard from an objector and Councillor Simon Carter.

RESOLVED that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 
conditions detailed in the report but updated by supplementary 
agenda 1.

58. HW/FUL/19/00387 - 66A SHAWBRIDGE 

The Committee received a report on application HW/FUL/19/00387 for the 
installation of 12 car parking spaces, including one disabled parking 
space, to the North-East of 66A Shawbridge.

RESOLVED that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 
conditions and informative clause detailed in the report.

59. HW/FUL/19/00388 - 14 PEAR TREE MEAD 

The Committee received a report on application HW/FUL/19/00388 for the 
installation of six car parking spaces, including one disabled parking 
space, in land South-West of 14 Pear Tree Mead.

RESOLVED that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 
conditions and informative clause detailed in the report.

60. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES 

None.

61. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS 

None.

CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE

4



REPORT TO DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
15 January 2020

REFERENCE: HW/HSE/19/00401

APPLICANT: Mr D Williams

LOCATION: 215 Malkin Drive, Harlow, Essex, CM17 9HJ

PROPOSAL: Conversion of the integral garage into an office and single storey 
rear extension

LOCATION PLAN:

REASON FOR COMMITTEE: Two objections have been received which are contrary to 
officer recommendation

5

Agenda Item 7



Application Site and Surroundings

The site includes a two storey detached property located in a residential estate. The area 
includes a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced houses. The street scene varies with 
elevations that include Juliet balconies and integrated and detached garages. 

The south facing rear boundary of the site abuts designated Green Belt and a Local Wildlife 
Site. It is also located within the setting of a Grade II listed building identified as Bensons. 

Details of the Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for a single storey rear extension to the dwelling at 
215 Malkin Drive and conversion of the integral garage to an office. The existing rear wall of 
the dwelling is stepped which the proposed extension would infill. It would be 3m wide by 2m 
deep. It would retain a 1m distance from the eastern side boundary. The extension would have 
a mono-pitched roof over it that would match the existing in pitch and materials, 
notwithstanding a ‘cut out’ flat roofed element which would enable an existing first floor 
window to be retained. An extractor fan would be introduced at ground floor level within the 
west flank wall and an existing door in the east flank wall would be infilled. A flue would be 
installed to the rear. The existing door to the garage would be replaced by a wall and a window 
to match the rest of the front of the house. 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:  

Application Reference Number: HW/LDCP/19/00306
Proposal: Single Storey Rear Extension
Application Status: Would Not Be Lawful Use/Development
Date Application Received: 29 July 2019
Date Application Decided: 23 September 2019

CONSULTATIONS:

Internal and external Consultees

ECC Heritage

No objection:

The application would not have any impact on heritage provided that the elevations match 
those considered under HW/LDCP/19/00306.

Officer Comment: the drawings match those considered for HW/LDCP/19/00306. 

Highway Authority

No objection:

The access to this site is not via a highway. Additionally, the dwelling has provision for two 
parking spaces without the garage and therefore it complies with the Essex Parking 
Standards. 

6



Neighbours and Additional Publicity

Number of Letters Sent: 4
Total Number of Representations Received: 2
Date Site Notice Expired: 15 November 2019
Date Press Notice Expired: 15 November 2019 

Summary of Representations Received

Two objections have been received. Both raise concerns on grounds of parking congestion 
which would be exacerbated due to the conversion of the garage to an office. One of the 
objections also raises concerns regarding anticipated health issues from emissions from the 
flue (that was originally proposed to be) on the west flank wall and noise and odour nuisance 
from the extractor fan in the west flank wall.

Officer comment: The plans were amended to move the flue to the rear of the building. The 
extractor fan is still proposed in the west flank wall. Neighbours have not been re-consulted on 
this amendment as the objector that raised issues with the flue and extractor fan confirmed in 
their original comments that, whilst they suggested the flue is repositioned to the back of the 
application dwelling, this would still bring the flue closer to their property. In addition, if they 
were found to be development, the flue and fan would constitute permitted development under 
the provisions of Part 1 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
Order 2015. 

PLANNING POLICY:

BE1:"Character and Identity" new and extended buildings should relate to their setting to 
strengthen, enhance, protect or create local character.  Permission will be granted for new 
development providing: it is well connected to and integrated with the wider settlement; the 
height massing, layout, appearance and landscape makes an appropriate visual relationship 
with that of the form, grain, scale, materials and details of the surrounding area; building 
design is specific to the site and its context; it enhances the character, image and perception 
of the area when highly visible.

BE6 - "Listed Buildings" proposals for the extension or alternation of any listed building, 
alteration of its setting, conversion or change of use should not adversely affect or harm any of 
the following: the character that forms its value as being of special architectural or historic 
interest; particular physical features that justify its protection; its setting in relation to its 
grounds, the surrounding area, other buildings and wider views and vistas.

T9:"Vehicle Parking" parking shall be provided in accordance with the adopted vehicle parking 
standards.  Justification is required for the amount of car parking proposed on an operational 
need and, if applicable, a Green Commuter Plan.

PLANNING STANDARDS:

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) - sets out the Government’s key 
economic, social and environmental objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. 
These policies will provide local communities with the tools they need to energise their local 
economies, meet housing needs, plan for a low-carbon future and protect the environmental 
and cultural landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from unnecessarily 
prescriptive central government policies, empowering local councils to deliver innovative 
solutions that work for their local area.

7



Supplementary Planning Documents/Current Planning Guidance

The Harlow Design Guide SPD (2011)
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:

Summary of Main Issues

The main issues in consideration are the principle of development, impact on character and 
appearance of the area including the setting of the Listed Building and the residential 
amenities of neighbours, including access, parking and highway safety.

Principle of development

This proposal to extend a dwelling within a residential area is acceptable provided it complies 
with relevant planning considerations as set out below.

Character and Appearance, including the Setting of the Listed Building

The proposed replacement of the garage door with a wall and window to match the existing 
materials of the dwelling constitute minor alterations which would be compatible with the 
appearance of the dwelling and the character of the wider area, which features a range of 
dwelling types including those without integral garages. In addition, the single storey rear 
extension would not be visible from public vantage points within the Church Langley 
residential area. 

The Council has a duty to consider the desirability of preserving or enhancing the setting of 
Listed Buildings. The ECC Heritage Officer confirms that the proposal would not affect the 
setting of the Listed Building at Bensons. 214 Malkin Drive is between the site and the building 
at Bensons. No. 214 has been extended in the form of a rear conservatory. The proposed 
extension would be screened by that conservatory and would not be obviously visible from the 
Listed Building, appearing part of the wider Church Langley development. The changes 
proposed to facilitate the conversion of the garage would not be visible from the Listed 
Building at Bensons.

Therefore the proposal would not be detrimental to the character and appearance of the 
dwelling or its surroundings, or the setting of the Listed Building, and would accord with 
policies BE1 and BE6 of the Adopted Replacement Harlow Local Plan (2006) and the Harlow 
Design Guide SPD (2011).

Amenities of neighbours

The rear boundary of the site abuts the designated Green Belt boundary. The rear garden is 
south facing. The proposed rear extension would infill the south-east corner of the dwelling. 
Owing to this orientation it would not affect any privacy or day light amenities of neighbours. 

An extractor fan would be introduced in the west flank wall at ground floor level, to serve the 
utility area. Its purpose would be to avoid damp in the utility area. Therefore it would not cause 
odour nuisance to the neighbour. The proposal has been amended to relocate the flue to the 
rear of the application dwelling. Both the flue and the extractor fan arguably do not constitute 
development and, in any event, could be inserted into the house via permitted development 

8



rights. The Council therefore has no control over the flue or the extractor fan and it is not 
considered reasonable to refuse the application for any potential associated impacts.

The proposal is considered be acceptable in terms of neighbour amenity and complies with 
the guidance in the Harlow Design Guide SPD (2011).

Access, Parking and Highway Safety

The conversion of the use of the garages within Malkin Drive is restricted by a planning 
condition to be retained for the purpose of parking. The forecourt measures 10m wide by 5.5m 
deep and provides a space clear from soft landscaping that would measure 5m wide by 5.5m 
deep. The Highway Authority has confirmed that the forecourt of the site is capable of 
accommodating two car parking spaces. In addition, a site visit by the Planning Officer 
revealed that three cars were actually parked in the forecourt. The Parking Standards state a 
requirement of two car parking spaces for this size of dwelling. The proposal would not 
increase the number of bedrooms within the dwelling. On this basis the conversion of the 
garage is not considered detrimental to parking for neighbours. The Highway Authority has not 
raised any concerns regarding access or highway safety and there are no substantive reasons 
to go against this expert advice.

The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable in terms of access, parking and 
highway safety, in accordance with policy T9 of the Adopted Replacement Harlow Local Plan 
(2006) and the Vehicle Parking Standards (2009). 

CONCLUSIONS:

The proposal would be acceptable in terms of the resulting appearance of the dwelling and the 
surrounding area. It would not affect the Listed Building as has been confirmed by the ECC 
Heritage Officer. The forecourt provides space for parking which meets the requirements of 
the Vehicle Parking Standards. The development would not materially affect any residential 
amenities of neighbours. It is therefore compliant with relevant policies as discussed above.

RECOMMENDATION:

That Committee resolve to: Grant planning permission subject to the following 
conditions:

 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission.
REASON:  In order to comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

 2 All new external work shall be carried out in materials of such colour or texture and with 
architectural detailing to match the existing facing work of the building.
REASON:  In the interest of visual amenity and to accord with policy BE1 of the 
Adopted Replacement Harlow Local Plan, July 2006.

3         The office as shown on the approved plans shall be used for purposes incidental to the 
use of the main dwelling and retained for such purposes at all times.
REASON:  In order to protect the residential amenities of neighbouring 
dwellings in accordance with the Harlow Design Guide SPD (2011).

9



 4 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans as shown listed in the table below.

REASON:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Plan Reference Version No. Plan Type Date Received

923 SK.1  -- Proposed Front Elevation 29.11.2019
  923 SK.3  -- Existing Ground Floor Plan 25.09.2019
 923.01  Rev B Existing and Proposed Flr and 

Elevations
29.11.2019

  

INFORMATIVE CLAUSES

1. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as originally 
submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments to the 
proposal to address these concerns. As a result, the Local Planning Authority has 
been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National 
Planning Policy Framework.

10



HW/HSE/19/00401

215 Malkin Drive, Harlow, CM17 9HJ

Application Drawings

Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations

Existing Elevations and Proposed Roof Plan

11



12



Proposed Front Elevation

13



REPORT TO DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
15 January 2020

HW/HSE/19/00452

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Bramidge & Dunlea

LOCATION: 77 The Chantry, Harlow, Essex, CM20 2LZ

PROPOSAL: Single storey rear extension

LOCATION PLAN:

REASON FOR COMMITTEE:

The application has been submitted by the Head of Environment & Planning

14

Agenda Item 8



Application Site and Surroundings

The application property is an end-of-terrace house situated in The Chantry. It faces the open 
space which surrounds the Church of St Mary the Virgin. The church is a Grade II Listed 
Building and is approximately 100 metres from the application site. The Chantry, the wider 
area and the church are part of the Mark Hall North Conservation Area; The Chantry being the 
first new town neighbourhood cluster in Harlow. 

77 The Chantry is at the end of a terrace of four houses – there are three similar terraces 
facing the open space around the church. The terrace is built with a low angle monopitch roof. 
A two-storey L-shaped extension wraps around part of the side and the rear of the house. This 
extension has a monopitch roof echoing the design of the roof on the main house. A row of six 
garages adjoin the extension and there is a small substation to the rear. Behind the house is a 
footpath giving rear access to 78 The Chantry and beyond that the rear garden of 76 The 
Chantry. The house is part-brick and part-rendered. 

Details of the Proposal

The application is for a single-storey flat-roofed extension built in the space between the main 
rear wall of the house and the side of the two-storey extension. This would be 3.4 metres deep 
and 2.8 metres wide, though because the corner of the side extension is chamfered it would 
be 3.2 metres wide at the rear. It would be 2.9 metres high.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:  

Planning Applications  

App Number Proposal Status Decision 
Date

HW/PL/89/00202 First Floor Side Extension to Form 
Granny Annexe

GTD 24.10.1989

CONSULTATIONS:

Internal and External Consultees

Heritage Officer – Essex Place Services

No objection:

The character of the conservation area is derived from the planned mid-20th century housing, 
including its layout and landscaping, rather than individual buildings themselves. In this part of 
the conservation area the regularity of the building types and the uniformity of the terraces 
(which is still legible despite some more recent alterations) including the open spaces between 
terraces make important contributions to its character and appearance.

The proposed single storey rear extension adjoins an existing two storey side/rear extension 
dating from the early 1990s. The principal elevation of the terrace fronting The Chantry to the 
south will remain unchanged. The rear of the property can be viewed from the footpath 
adjacent to the north-west, although it is partially screened by the existing garage block. 
However, due to the low height and modest scale of the extension, it is not prominent in views. 
The flat roof design is in keeping with the host building and the existing flat roofed rear 
extensions seen throughout the same development.

15



It is worth noting, however, that whilst this extension may be considered not to be problematic, 
there are other houses along The Chantry where a rear extension may not be appropriate due 
to the positioning of the terraces and the prominence of their rear elevations.

There are no objections to the erection of a rear extension as it is not considered to detract 
from the character or appearance of the conservation area or cause harm to its significance. 
The uniformity of the terrace (other than the existing 1990s extension) and the legibility of the 
planned layout are maintained. This is in accordance with paragraphs 193-196 of the NPPF 
and section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Neighbours and Additional Publicity

Number of Letters Sent: 4
Total Number of Representations Received: 0
Date Site Notice Expired: 13 December 2019
Date Press Notice Expired: 19 December 2019

PLANNING POLICY: 

BE1:"Character and Identity" new and extended buildings should relate to their setting to 
strengthen, enhance, protect or create local character.  Permission will be granted for new 
development providing: it is well connected to and integrated with the wider settlement; the 
height massing, layout, appearance and landscape makes an appropriate visual relationship 
with that of the form, grain, scale, materials and details of the surrounding area; building 
design is specific to the site and its context; it enhances the character, image and perception 
of the area when highly visible.

BE10:"Conservation Areas" new development within or affecting a Conservation Area will be 
granted consent subject to: it not harming the character or appearance of the Conservation 
Area; the scale, height, form, massing, elevation, detailed design, materials and layout respect 
the character of the Conservation Area; the proposed land use is compatible with the function 
and activities of the Conservation Area.

Harlow Local Development Plan – Pre-Submission Publication (2018) 

Harlow Council is in the process of submitting a new local plan for examination. 

On 19 October 2018 the Harlow Local Development Plan Pre-Submission Publication (the 
“emerging Local Plan”) was submitted to the Secretary of State.

Paragraph 48 of the NPPF sets out that weight may be given to relevant policies in
emerging local plans according to the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more
advanced the preparation, the greater the weight that may be given); the extent to which
there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant the unresolved
objections, the greater the weight may be given); and the degree of consistency of the
relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF (the closer the policies in
the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).

It is considered that the policies within the emerging Local Plan are consistent with the
policies in the NPPF and that weight should be given to relevant emerging Local Plan
policies at this stage. Relevant policies are discussed within the Planning Assessment section.

16



PLANNING STANDARDS:

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) - sets out the Government’s key 
economic, social and environmental objectives and the planning policies to deliver them. 
These policies will provide local communities with the tools they need to energise their local 
economies, meet housing needs, plan for a low-carbon future and protect the environmental 
and cultural landscapes that they value. It seeks to free communities from unnecessarily 
prescriptive central government policies, empowering local councils to deliver innovative 
solutions that work for their local area.

Supplementary Planning Documents/Current Planning Guidance

The Essex Design Guide (2005)
The Harlow Design Guide SPD (2011)

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:

Summary of Main Issues

As this is an application to extend a residential property in a residential area, the principle of 
the development is acceptable. As with most domestic extensions, the issues to be 
considered are the appearance of the proposal and impact on neighbours.  

Appearance 

As the site is within a conservation area, special attention should be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area. 

The Essex County Council Heritage Officer has raised no objections to the proposal. 

This is a rear extension and its juxtaposition with surrounding properties is such that it would 
not be readily visible from public areas. It would not have a significant impact on the wider 
conservation area therefore. In any event its design is considered acceptable as it relates to 
the host dwelling satisfactorily and similar materials are proposed (a condition is 
recommended to confirm this). Although the house has been previously extended, the 
cumulative impact of the extensions is not considered excessive. The proposal would not 
harm the conservation area. The proposal is considered to comply with policies BE1 and BE10 
of the Local Plan. 

This is a rear extension on the opposite side of the house to St Mary’s Church, so it would not 
impact upon the setting of that listed building. 

Impact on neighbours

As number 77 is an end-of-terrace house, the only neighbour likely to be significantly affected 
is the attached neighbour, number 78. The extension would be set 3.4 metres from the shared 
boundary with number 78. Furthermore, number 78 has a single-storey rear extension which 
mitigates the impact even more, so the impact on that property is considered to be acceptable. 
No objections have been received from neighbours. 

17



CONCLUSIONS:

As this property is located within a conservation area its appearance has to be considered 
particularly carefully and in this instance the development is acceptable. The proposed 
extension is sufficiently far from the attached neighbour not to affect them significantly. Thus, it 
is considered the application should be granted. 

RECOMMENDATION:

That Committee resolve to: GRANT planning permission subject to the following 
conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission.

REASON:  In order to comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

2 All new external work shall be carried out in materials of such colour or texture and with 
architectural detailing to match the existing facing work of the building.

REASON:  In the interests of visual amenity and character and appearance of the 
area in accordance with policies BE1 and BE10 of the Adopted Replacement 
Harlow Local Plan, July 2006.

 3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans as shown listed in the table below.

REASON:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Plan Reference Version No. Plan Type Date Received

L-01  -- Location and Block Plan 06.11.2019

A-01  -- Existing Plans and Elevations 06.11.2019

A-02  -- Proposed Plans and Elevations 06.11.2019

 INFORMATIVE CLAUSES

1. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including 
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and 
subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National 
Planning Policy Framework.

18



Mark Philpott
Development Manager  

Contributing Officer
John Harrison

19



HW/HSE/19/00452 

77 The Chantry, Harlow, CM20 2LZ

Application Drawings

Block Plan

Existing Ground Floor

20



Existing Elevations

21



Proposed Ground Floor Plan

22



Proposed Elevations

23


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 HW/HSE/19/00401 - 215 Malkin Drive
	Plans

	8 HW/HSE/19/00452 - 77 The Chantry
	Plans


